
Page 1 of 3 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by 
the Contra Costa County Economic Opportunity Council (EOC) to a majority of members of the EOC less than 
96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 1470 Civic Ct. Suite 200, Concord, CA 
94520 during normal business hours. 

 

Group/Meeting Name: Economic Opportunity Council Business Meeting 

Date: 9/8/2022  Time:  From:  6:00 PM To  8:00 PM   

Location: Video Conference Meeting  
ZOOM call:  

 

 

 

• Visit  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89487662257?pwd=S0crZVByMmVWTUc
vMkkwenhPN0lTUT09 
 • Click Join meeting and enter the following ID #: 894 8766 2257 
• You will be prompted to enter your name and the following 
password:  
• Wait for host to join 

Call-in: • Dial 1-669-900-9128 US (San Jose) 
• Enter Conference code: 095732 

Meeting Leader: Renee Zeimer, Chair 

Purpose: To Conduct EOC Business Meeting 
 

The Economic Opportunity Council will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning 
to 

participate in EOC meetings.  Please contact staff at least 24 hours before the meeting at AKaur@ehsd.cccounty.us 
 

Opportunities for Public Comment: Persons who wish to address the EOC during the public comment or with 
respect to an agenda item may email their comments AKaur@ehsd.ccounty.us before or during the meeting, or 

should join the teleconference meeting prior to the meeting to state their intent to provide public comments and will 
be limited to two minutes.   

All votes taken during a teleconference will be by roll call.   
 

The Board Chair may reduce the amount of time allotted per speaker at the beginning of each item or public 
comment period depending on the number of speakers and the business of the day.  

Your patience is appreciated.   
 
 

Desired Outcome: By the end of this meeting, we will: 
 

Understand the desired outcomes and ground rules for this meeting so that we accomplish our meeting objectives in 
a timely and efficient manner. 
Receive any public comments so that the public has an opportunity to provide input and we are knowledgeable of 
the community’s concerns and/or interests for potential inclusion on future agenda. 
Interview EOC Board Member applicant Patricia J. Campbell.  
Discuss and vote for EOC Board Member Applicant Patricia J. Campbell. 
Review and approve the draft June 9, 2022 EOC Business Meeting minutes for official record. 
Review and approve the draft June 29, 2022 EOC Special Business Meeting minutes for official record. 
Receive updates on Fiscal reports (includes LIHEAP/ Weatherization) so that members are fully informed. 
Ratify proposal to extend next year’s CSBG base contracts (approved at EOC Special Called Meeting August 16, 
2022). 
Ratify CSB Strategic Plan (approved at EOC Special Called Meeting August 16, 2022). 
Discuss on-site subcontractor monitoring visits timeline, sign-ups and next steps. 
Receive reports so that we are informed of activities and have identified appropriate next steps (includes recruitment 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89487662257?pwd=S0crZVByMmVWTUcvMkkwenhPN0lTUT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89487662257?pwd=S0crZVByMmVWTUcvMkkwenhPN0lTUT09
mailto:AKaur@ehsd.cccounty.us
mailto:AKaur@ehsd.ccounty.us


Page 2 of 3 

 
Agenda 

What How Who Time 
 

 1. Review Desired Outcomes &  
     Ground Rules 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
 

Chair 3 Minutes 

2. Public Comment Present Members of the 
Public 

2 Minutes 

3. Action: 
• Interview EOC Board Member 

Applicant Patricia J. Campbell  
• Discuss and vote for EOC Board 

Member Applicant Patricia J. 
Campbell 

Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Check for Approval 

Group 20 Minutes 

4. Action: 
• June 9, 2022 EOC Business 

Meeting minutes draft review 
and approve 

• June 29, 2022 EOC Special 
Business Meeting minutes draft 
review and approve 

Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Check for Approval 

 

Group 5 Minutes 

5. Fiscal Reports: 
• 2020 CSBG CARES 

expenditure report 
• 2021 CSBG June 2022 

expenditure reports 
• 2021 CSBG July 2022 

expenditure reports 
• LIHEAP/ Weatherization reports 

October 1, 2021-December 31, 
2021 

• LIHEAP/ Weatherization reports 
January 1, 2022 - March 31, 
2022 
 

Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
 

CSB staff 20 Minutes 

6. Action: 
• Ratify proposal to extend next 

year’s CSBG base contracts 

Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Check for Approval 

Group 5 Minutes  

strategies). 

Discuss 2022-2023 Executive Committee Elections. 
Vote for 2022-2023 Executive Committee Election Board Members. 
List next steps so that everyone is aware of their assigned tasks, upcoming meetings, and deadlines. 
Evaluate the meeting. 



Page 3 of 3 

Agenda 

What How Who Time 
7. Action:  

• Ratify CSB Strategic Plan 
(approved at EOC Special 
Called Meeting August 16, 
2022) 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Check for Approval 

Group 5 Minutes  

8. Discuss: 
• On-site subcontractor 

monitoring visits timeline, sign-
ups and next steps 

Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
CSB staff 20 Minutes 

9. Reports:  
• EOC Chair 
• CSB Staff  
 Discuss EOC Board 

recruitment strategies 
• EOC Members 
 

                  Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Group 

       
15 Minutes 

10. Action: 
• Discuss 2022-2023 Executive 

Committee Elections 
• Vote for 2022-2023 Executive 

Committee Election Board 
Members 
 Secretary 
 Vice Chair 
 Chair  

Present  
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Check for Approval 

Group 20 Minutes 

11. Next Steps 
 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
 

Group 3 Minutes 

12. Meeting Evaluation +/Δ 
 

Group 2 Minutes 

 
 



Contra Costa County Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Submit Date: Aug 19, 2022

 

Profile

PATRICIA J
First Name Middle Initial

Home Address

Danville

City

Primary Phone

Email Address

District Locator Tool

Resident of Supervisorial District:

Jf District 2

Dean
Employer Job Title

Length of Employment

5 years

Do you workin Contra Costa County?

© Yes @ No

lf Yes, in which District do you work?

How long have you lived or worked in Contra Costa County?

5 years

CAMPBELL
Last Name

Suite orApt

CA
State

Are you a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces?

© Yes © No

94526
Postal Code

 

Board andInterest

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Economic Opportunity Council: Submitted

PATRICIA J CAMPBELL



Seat Name

Have you everattended a meeting of the advisory board for which you are applying?

© Yes @ No

If Yes, how many meetings have you attended?

 

Education

Select the option that applies to your high schoo! education *

f¥ High School Diploma

College/ University A

Nameof College Attended

University of Denver

Degree Type / Course of Study / Major

Ph.D. -

Degree Awarded?

@ Yes © No

College/ University B

Nameof College Attended

Illinois State University
ae

Degree Type / Course of Study / Major

BS

Degree Awarded?

@ Yes G No

 

College/ University C

Nameof College Attended

Degree Type / Course of Study / Major

PATRICIA J CAMPBELL



Degree Awarded?

© Yes © No

 

Other Trainings & Occupational Licenses

Other Training A

Certificate Awarded for Training?

G@ Yes G No

Other Training B

Certificate Awarded for Training?

© Yes G No

Occupational Licenses Completed:

 

Qualifications and Volunteer Experience

Please explain why you would like to serve on this particular board, commitee, or

commission.

| would like the opportunity to serve my community. | selected boards that would fit with my background

and experience.| serve as the Dean of Benerd College at the University of the Pacific. Our school

focuses on education, leadership, and professional and continuing education. We regularly partner with

local businesses to addresstraining and professional development needs. Oneof our goals to ensure our

students exit our programs with the knowledge,skills, and abilities to be successful in their careers and in

their lives. As such, | can bring an educational perspective to the Economic Opportunity Council and

Workforce Development Board, while also learning about the needs of local businesses and the

community. Lastly, as a private pilot, | am interested in the Aviation Advisory Committee because | see

the needforprivate pilots to better understand the issues pertaining to airport security and economic

development. | would be honored to be selected to serve on any one of these boards.

Describe your qualifications for this appointment. (NOTE: you may also include a copy of

your resumewith this application)

Please see my attached CV.

Upload a Resume

Would you like to be considered for appointment to other advisory bodies for which you

may be qualified?

@ Yes © No

PATRICIA J CAMPBELL



Do you have any obligations that might affect your attendance at scheduled meetings?

@ Yes G No

If Yes, please explain:

| workfull time, but can typically adjust my schedule as needed.

Are you currently or have you ever been appointed to a Contra Costa County advisory

board?

© Yes © No

If Yes, please list the Contra Costa County advisory board(s) on which you are currently

serving:

If Yes, please alsolist the Contra Costa County advisory board(s) on which you have

previously served:

List any volunteer or community experience, including any advisory boards on which you

have served.

Most of my volunteer experience has been with professional organizations, ¢.g. organizing conferences,

serving on executive boards for professional organizations (American Political Science Association,

Georgia Political Science Association), or serving on editorial review boards (Indigenous Policy Studies,

Journal of Global Security andIntelligence Studies, etc). | have volunteered with Habitat for Humanity and

Tree People.

 

Conflict of Interest and Certification

Do you havea familial or financial relationship with a memberof the Board of Supervisors?

(Please refer to the relationships listed under the "Important Information" section below or

Resolution No. 2021/234)

© Yes @ No

if Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship:

Do you haveanyfinancial relationships with the County such as grants, contracts, or other

economic relationships?

© Yes © No

If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship:

PATRICIA J CAMPBELL



Please Agree with the Following Statement

| CERTIFY that the statements madeby mein this application are true, complete, and correct

to the best of my knowledge and belief, and are madein goodfaith. | acknowledge and

undersandthatall information in this application is publicly accessible. | understand that

misstatements and/or omissions of material fact may cause forfeiture of my rights to serve

on a board, committee, or commission in Contra Costa County.

J4i | Agree

 

Important Information

1. This application and any attachments you provide toit is a public document andis subjectto
the California Public Records Act (CA Government Code §6250-6270).

2. All members of appointed bodies are required to take the advisory bodytraining provided by

Contra Costa County.

3. Members of certain boards, commissions, and committees may be required to: (1) file a

Statement of Economic Interest Form also known as a Form 700, and (2) complete the State

Ethics Training Course as required by AB 1234.

4. Meetings may be held in various locations and somelocations may not be accessible by
public transportation.

5. Meeting dates and times are subject to change and mayoccur up to two (2) days per month.

6. Some boards, committees, or commissions may assign members to subcommittees or work

groups which mayrequire an additional commitmentof time.

7. As indicated in Board Resolution 2021/234, a person will not be eligible for appointmentif

he/sheis related to a Board of Supervisors' memberin any of the following relationships:
(1) Mother, father, son, and daughter;

(2) Brother, sister, grandmother, grandfather, grandson, and granddaughter;

(3) Husband,wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, stepson, and
stepdaughter;

(4) Registered domestic partner, pursuant to California Family Code section 297;

(5) The relatives, as defined in 1 and 2 above,for a registered domestic partner;

(6) Any person with whom a Board Membersharesa financial interest as defined in the

Political Reform Act (Gov't Code §87103, Financial Interest), such as a business partner or

business associate.

PATRICIA J CAMPBELL



PATRICIA J. CAMPBELL, Ph.D.

 

Dean<i.
(Jrierrateyo

ereremesantes  SEeeersg
SETT ASSO:

EDUCATION

Ph.D., International Relations Korbel School of International Studies, 1993

B.A., Political Science & History

ACADEMIC APPOINMENTS

Position

Dean,ii.

Dean, University College

University of Denver, Denver, CO
Fields: Comparative Politics, Africa,
Human Rights, Gender, Migration

lllinois State University, Normal, IL 1985
Double Majorin History and Political Science;
Minor German

Institution Year

July 2019-

present

Rah July 2017-July
2019

Vice President & Assistant Provost of American Public University System 2014-2017
Graduate Studies, Research, & Innovation Charles Town, WV

Vice President & Dean of Graduate American Public University System 2014-2015
Studies

Associate Vice President & Dean of American Public University System 2011-2013
Graduate

Studies

interim Dean of the School of Security American Public University System Jan.-April
& Global Studies 2012

Program Director, International American Public University System 2008-
Relations, Middle Eastern, & Area 2011
Studies

Professor, Departmentof Political Science University of West Georgia 2005-
& Planning Carrollton, GA 2008

Acting Chair, Departmentof Political University of West Georgia 2002
Science
& Planning

Associate Professor, Department of University of West Georgia 2000-05
Political
Science & Planning

Director, Global Studies Program University of West Georgia 2001-
2005

Assistant Professor, Department of University of West Georgia 1995-
Political 2000
Science & Planning



Adjunct Professor, Social Sciences Aims Community College 1994-95
Department Ft. Lupton, CO

Teacher, Social Studies Academyof our Lady Jan. 1986-Aug.
Chicago,IL 1987

PROFESSSIONAL EXPERIENCE & SELECTED ACHIEVEMENTS

Administrative Leadership

University of the Pacific:
Oversaw the mergerof two existing colleges (University College and Benerd School of Education)
into one College, Benerd College. This included strategic planning for the new entity, developing
new bylaws and merging the staff functions. Benerd College, per university directive, functions
under several different budget models requiring management of an annual budget along with
endowed funds,totally more than $10 million. Benerd College includes:

¢ Bachelors through doctoral programs in Education, degree completion, and Counseling
Psychology.

e Credit and non-credit offerings, totaling more than 24,000 enrollments for FY2020.,

e International Programs and Services (IPS) and UOP International (UOPI).

*« State Authorization (2017-2021).

e Online Teaching & Learning.

e Osher Lifelong Learning Institute (OLLI).

Oversaw successful accreditation visit by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing
(CCTC) and National Association of School Psychologists (NASP).

Raised $8 million toward the University’s endowment campaign.

Secured a series of grants (totaling more than one million dollars) from Abbott Pharmaceuticals to
create Diabetes Managementcertificates to help battle the diabetes epidemic in the San Joaquin
Valley.

Introduced for-credit and stackable certificates to Pacific.

Increased enrollment in continuing and professional development by more than 15,000.

Increased enrollment in Bachelor of Liberal Studies by 130 percent.

Restructured University College leading to a more than one million dollar increase in revenue in FY
18, an increase in enrollment, and an increase in the number of continuing education programs,
certificates, and extension courses.

Oversaw the revision of the structure and curriculum for Pacific's degree completion programs to
better reflect the needs of employers and market demands.

Oversee online education and instructional design at Pacific, promoting online teaching and
learning across all three campuses and ensuring courses and programs are compliant with federal
rules and regulations and with regional accreditation requirements.

Manage UOP's partnership with Shorelight International, which has brought in more than 300
international students to Pacific.

Managed Pacific’s “Academic Technology Blueprint,” which is Pacific's strategic plan for
modernizing learning spaces, enhancing personalized learning, and extending support for faculty
and student scholarship.

Oversaw the Center for Teaching and Learning and helped ensure faculty had access to vibrant
support for online teaching (2017-2019).

 

Campbell 2



Led Pacific’s effort to accept Associate Degrees for Transfer (ADTs).

Work closely with the local community and business leaders to identify areas where workforce
development needsare not being met in order the develop the training, certificates, and
programs that meet these needs.

Serve on the Council of Deans, which provides advice to the provost on all matters related to the
Academic unit.

Managethe University’s multiple external partners, Hanover, Canvas, Burning Glass, ECG,etc.

Serve on the University’s health school planning group that designed and launched a new school
of Health Sciences.

American Public University System:
Member of the President's Cabinet, which was responsible for the development, execution, and
monitoring of the university’s strategic plan and employee related MBOs.

Responsible for exploring and creating alternative learning modalities, including competency-
based education, micro-credentialing, prior fearning assessment, etc.

Working closely with the Board of Trustees, led the development of the institution's first doctoral
programs,including completing the institution’s successful application to our accrediting body, the
Higher Learning Commission (HLC), to become a doctorate granting institution.

Ensured effective communication and collaboration with IT, instructional design, marketing,
scheduling, payroll, etc. for effective and timely project managementof newstrategic initiatives.

Led the initiative to create competency-based learning programs that ensure educational quality
and flexibility.

Co-Chaired the university’s Foundations of Excellence Committee, working in conjunction with the
John N. Gardner Institute for Excellence in Undergraduate Education to develop new admissions
criteria and a new core-learning module designed to positively impact retention, persistence, and
graduation rates.

Created and chaired the university's Institutional Review Board (IRB), responsible for reviewingall
research involving human subjects.

Created and chaired the university's Internal Research Review Board, which reviewed all requests
to conduct research involving university staff, students, and faculty, ensuring the research was
both sound andof strategic importanceto the institution.

Created the key performance indicators that were used by 36 master’s degree programs to
measure the university's progress in developing a vibrant graduate culture.

Developed an online orientation for new graduate students and collaborated with school deans to
makeit a requirement for all incoming graduate students.

Created and chaired the Graduate Advisory Council, which was responsible for providing
oversight of 36 master’s degrees, 43 certificates, and 7 learning track programs. Responsibilities
included curriculum review, policy development and review, and accreditation preparation.

Created and administered the university’s graduate teaching certification process, which required
all graduate teaching faculty to participate in a workshop that provided them with tools and
strategies for creating a vibrant graduate culture.

Implemented best practices in graduate education as recommended by the HLC and
collaborated with school deans and program directors to prepare other discipline specific
accreditation reports and applications.

Shepherded nine programs (bachelor’s degrees, minors, a certificate, and master’s programs)
through a period of rapid growth (400% in 4 years) and successful accreditation review by
developing curriculum; scheduling courses; conducting program reviews; and recruiting, hiring,
developing, and evaluating more than 30 faculty.

Responsible for tracking all capitalized labor costs and profit and loss (P&L) related to the external
contracts | oversaw.

Administered the university's research grant awards process, which annually allocated over
$150,000 in research grants.

 

Campbell 3



Served on the Provost’s Advisory Council, the university's academic leadership team,
collaboratively charting the future goals and direction of the university and providing
recommendations regarding the allocation of resources in pursuit of identified strategic priorities.

Served as a peer reviewer for the Higher Learning Commission, working in teams to conduct on-
site visits to assess universities’ overall institutional quality as well as institutional progress toward
meeting HLC established standards andcriteria.

Developed new policies for graduate studies’ retention and persistence efforts as well as new
entrance requirements that improved learning outcomesin 36 master’s programs.

Evaluated all 36 Master’s programs, identified areas for improvement, and worked collaboratively
with faculty, program directors, and deans to ensure a culture of continuous improvement.

Set standards for end of program assessments across all graduate programs, including
establishing all policies related to comprehensive exams and capstone exercises. Developed the
End of Program Assessment Manual used byall graduate programs.

Co-Chaired the university’s initiative to map all programs to the Lumina Foundation’s Degree
Qualifications Profile’s (DQP) five areas of learning (applied learning, intellectual skills, specialized
knowledge, integrative knowledge, and civic learning). Developed strategies for identifying and
closing gaps as well as created methodsto validate the mapping process.

Developed the university’s institutional specific DQP area of learning, Digital Information Literacy,
and worked coilaboratively to integrate this into every university program.

University of West Georgia:
Led the Political Science Department's efforts to convert curriculum from the quarter system to the
semester system.

Chaired various tenure and post-tenure review committees.

Served as a faculty senator and chaired various committees within the senate including the
Faculty, Staff and Personnel Committee that wrote the university’s Sexual Harassmentpolicy.

Developed and served as Program Director for the university’s first interdisciplinary bachelor’s
program in Global Studies.

Successfully shepherded the Global Studies program through Southern Association of Colleges and
Schools (SACS) accreditation review.

As Acting Chair of the Political Science Department, managed the department’s budget, including
hiring, resource allocation, and procurement.

PUBLICATIONS
 

 

“TED Studies: Government and Politics - Cyber-iInfluence & Power,” co-author, 2013
Christy R. Stevens, TED Studies/Wiley, http://www.wiley,com/WileyCDA/Section/id-
814658. html.

introduction to Global Studies, textbook, Wiley-Blackwell, co-authors Aran 2010
MacKinnon and Christy R. Stevens.

“Collaborating with Librarians to Develop LowerDivision Political Science 2008
Students’ Information Literacy Competencies,” fournal of Political Science
Education, vol. 4, no. 2, co-author Christy R. Stevens.

“Information Literacy and Global Citizenship: Collaborating to connect Lifelong 200
Learning and Information Literacy in the Global Studies Classroom,” Reference 6
Services Reviews, vol. 34, no. 4, co-author Christy R. Stevens.

“The Politics of Information Literacy: Integrating Information Literacy into the
Political Science Curriculum,” in Information Literacy Collaborations that Work,
Eds. Trudi E. Jacobson and ThomasP. Mackey, New York, NY: Neal-Schuman 2006
Publishers, co-author Christy R. Stevens.

“Gender and Post-conflict Civil Society: Eritrea,” International FeministJournal of 2005
 

Campbell 4



Politics, vol. 7, no.3.

“Global Studies: Hurdles to Program Development, College Teaching, vol. 52,
no.1, co-authors Paul E. Masters and Amy Goolsby.

“Morocco, Changing Times? A New Generation of Arab Leader,” African Studies
Quarterly, vol. 7, no. 1.

“The Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC) Human Rights and State Transitions:
The South Africa Model,” Africa Studies Quarterly, vol. 4, no. 3.

“Gendered HumanRights: The International Community’s Failed Response to the
Persecution of Women,” Politics & Policy, vol. 29, no.1.

Democratization and the Protection of Human Rights: Challenges and
Contradictions, Eds. Patricia J. Campbell and Kathleen Mahoney-Norris, Praeger
Publishers.

“Introduction,” in Democratization and the Protection of Human Rights:

Challenges and Contradictions, Eds. Patricia J. Campbell and Kathleen Mahoney-
Norris, Greenwood Publishers, 3-14.

“Unequal Democracies: The GenderYardstick,” in Democratization and the
Protection of Human Rights: Challenges and Contradictions, Eds, Patricia J.
Campbell and Kathleen Mahoney-Norris, Greenwood Publishers, 31-46.

“The Global Studies Imperative,” Studies in Social Sciences,” vol. XXXV, co-
author Paul E, Masters,

“Culture, Human Rights, and Universality,” Third World Quarterly, vol. 10, no. 1,
co-author David R. Penna.

“Preventing the Consequences of Human Rights Abuse: The Caseof Refugee
Women,” Selected Papers on Refugees Issues 1994, with Peter W. Van Arsdale.
Eds. Amy Zaharlick and Jeff MacDonald, Washington, D.C. American
Anthropological Association, Committee on Refugee Issues.

“The UNHCRand the International Refugee Protection System: Resources and

Responses,” in Refugee Empowerment and Organizational Change: A Systems

Perspective, with Debra Kreisberg-Voss and Joy Sobrepena. Ed. Peter Van Arsdale.

Arlington, VA, Committee on Refugee Issues-American Anthropological Association, 155-
180.

“The Mexican American: Bilingual Education and the English Only Amendment,”in

Racism and the Underclass in American: Discrimination Against Minorities and State

Policy, with Priscilla Falcon. Eds. George W. Shepherd and David Penna, Greenwood
Press, 145-160.

“The Telephone Survey Method,” Applied Field Methods a Manual of Practice. Eds. Peter

W. Van Arsdale and Swarnalatha Rao Vemuri, Center for Cultural Dynamics, 42-46. 1991

“The Longitudinal Research Method,” Applied Field Methods a Manualof Practice. Eds.

Peter W. Van Arsdale and Swarnalatha Rao Vemuri, Center for Cultural Dynamics, 52-58.

SELECTEDPRESENTATIONS & CONFERENCES

“Developing a Graduate Culture in an Online Environment,” Higher Learning
Commission Annual Conference, Chicago, IL

“Learning 3.0,” International Studies Association, Toronto, Canada

“Delivering Political Science Online: How to Create an Effective Online Learning
Environment,” American Political Science Association’s Teaching and Learning
Conference, Long Beach, CA

2004

2003

2000

2000

1998

1998

1998

1998

1998

1998

1994

1993

1991

April 2016

March

2014

Feb. 2013

 

Campbell 5



Short Course: “Researching to Learn, Learning to Research: Teaching, Learning, and
Online Research,” American Political Science Association, Seattle, WA

Sept. 2011

 

 

Workshop Organizer/Presenter: “Delivering International Studies Online: How to Create Feb. 2010
an Effective Online Learning Environment,” International Studies Association, New
Orleans, LA

“Information Literacy and Global Citizenship: Making the Connection BetweenLifelong June
Learning and Information Literacy in the Global Studies Classroom,” LOEX of the West, 2006
Kona, Hawaii

“Information Literacy and Lifelong Learning in Political Science,” Midwest Political April 2006
Science Association, Chicago,IL

“GenderRelations in Post-Conflict Society: The Case of Eritrea,” International Studies March
Association annual meeting, New Orleans, LA 2002

“The Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC): Human Rights and State Transitions: March
The South Africa Model,” International Studies Association, Annual Meeting, Los 2000
Angeles, CA

“The 'Third Wave': Human Rights and the (Re)construction of Democracy,” Chair and April 1997
Discussant, Midwest Political Science Association, Chicago,IL

“Preventing the Consequences of Human Rights Abuse: The Case of Refugee Women,” Nov. 1993
with Peter W. Van Arsdale, American Anthropological Association, Washington, D.C.

“The Mexican American: Bilingual Education and the English Only Amendment,” Spring May 1990
Speaker Series, University of Denver, Denver, CO

EDITING & PEER REVIEWING

Co-editor, journal of Global Security and Intelligence Studies Jan. 2014-

As co-editor and working in conjunction with the Policy Studies Organization, helped Aug. 2017
launch the journal, including securing reviewers, soliciting and reviewing manuscripts
and book reviews, assisting with marketing, and ensuring overall quality of thejournal.

Advisory Council, /ndigenous Policyjournal ongoin
Charged with reviewing policies related to the journal as well as reviewing manuscripts. g

Member, Advisory Board, ABC POL SCI: A Bibliography of Contents: Political Science 1998-
and Government, 2001

Peer Reviewer ongoin

° international Migration Review «IndigenousPolicyJournal g

e African Studies Review *Politics and Policy

¢ Womenin Politics

SELECTED PROFESSIONAL SERVICE

Peer Mentor, American Political Science Association, serving as mentor for new 2010-
APSA membersto assist with professional and career development. 2018

Workshop Organizer, 19" Annual Sloan Consortium (Sloan-C) International 2013
Conference on Online Learning. Created a full day workshop on graduate online
teaching and learning (November 20, 2013, Lake Buena Vista, FL).

Memberat Large, Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, and Transgender Caucus, International 2010-
Stiidies Ascaciatinon . . . . anata
Section Organizer, Southern Political Science Association meeting, Gay, Lesbian, 2011
Bisexual, and
ranenanaAar Darrieriem RiaMelaanne I

Member:at Large, Women's Caucus, International Studies Association 2010-
an
 

Campbell 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Member, Executive Committee on Teaching and Learning, American Political Science 2009-11
Acsociation .
Member, Southern Political Science Association Conference Program Committee, Chair, 2005
Camnarativa

Officer, Executive Committee, Georgia Political Science Association 1997-

SELECTED HONORS

Above and Beyond Award, APUS, recognized for successful HLC Graduate Studies report. 2015

Learning Resources Grant ($1260) to explore the pedagogical potential of podcasting, 2006
University of West Georgia.

Center for Teaching and Learning Grant ($2000) to establish a study abroad program in 2005
South Africa, University of West Georgia

International Offices Grant ($5000) to establish a study abroad program in South Africa, 2005
University of West Georgia.

Learning Resources Grant ($1500) to conduct researchin Eritrea, University of West 2002

Georgia.

University of West Georgia’s Senior Faculty Nominee for the National Endowmentfor the 2000
Humanities SummerStipend Grant.

Fulbright-Hays Seminar, “Morocco and Senegal: Faces of Islam in Africa.” 1999

National Endowment for the Humanities, “Human Rights and Cultural Relativism,” 1999
June-july awarded, but unable to accept, Columbia University, New York.

SELECTED BLOGS & PODCASTS

Blogs

“Globalization and Outcomes-Focus are Changing the Face of Graduate Education,” 2014
https://evolilution.com/programming/program_planning/globalization-outcomes-

focus-changing-face-graduate-education/

“Know What to Expect When Taking Online Courses,” 2014
https://apuedge.com/know-what-to-expect-when-taking-online-courses/

“Managing Expectations: How to Make Sure You are Readyfor College,” 2014
https://apbuedge.com/managing-expectations-how-to-make-sure-you-are-ready-for-
college/

“Should You Go to Graduate School?” http://www.evolllution.com/opinions/graduate- 2013
school/

“Choosing the Right Graduate Program,” 2013
https://evolllution.com/opinions/choosing-graduate-program/

“Welcome to Graduate School. Now What?” 2013
http://evolllution.com/opinions/graduate-school-what/

“How to Excel in Graduate School,” http://evolilution.com/opinions/excel-graduate-school/ 2013

“Social Discourse is Valuable to Online Grad-Student Experience,” Guest Blog for: 2013

https://wallyboston.com/social-discourse-is-valuable-to-online-grad-student-experience/

Podcasts

2013“Syria: Stepping Back from the Brink, for Now.”

 

Campbell 7



“Syria’s Civil War - Implications for the Region and for the U.S. 2012

“The Death of Qaddafi” 2011

“Uncertainties in Libya” 2011

 

Campbell 8



 

Page 1 of 3 
                                          EOC Approved:  

 

 

Economic Opportunity Council (EOC) Business Meeting Minutes 
Location:  Zoom Call 

 

 
Date:  6/9/2022 Time Convened: 6:05 pm Time Terminated:  7:30 pm Recorder:  Desiré Medlen 
 
Conference Call attendees: Renee Zeimer (arrived after meeting began), Devlyn Sewell, Desiré Medlen, Ajit Kaushal, Sofia Navarro, Alison McKee, 
LaTonia Peoples-Stokes, Mandy Nelson, Brendan Foley, Noe Gudino. 
 
Absentees: Monisha Merchant. 
Staff: Amrita Kaur, Amanda Cleveland, Michael Morris. 
 

Quorum: Yes 
 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

Review desired outcomes and ground 
rules. 

• Vice Chair Sewell called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm.   
• Kaushal read the desired outcomes.   

Public Comment • None present.  

Action:  
 May 12th, 2022, EOC Business 

Meeting minutes 

• The group reviewed the draft May 12th, 2022, Business Meeting minutes with no changes.   
 
A motion to approve the draft May 12th, 2022, Business Meeting minutes was made by Kaushal and 
seconded by McKee. 
   
The motion passed with EOC members voting as follows:  
Ayes: Gudino, Nelson, Foley, McKee, Sewell, Peoples-Stokes, Kaushal, Navarro, Medlen. 
Nays: None  
Abstentions: None 
Absent: Merchant, Zeimer. 



 

Page 2 of 3 
                                          EOC Approved:  

 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

Fiscal Reports: 
 2020 CSBG CARES 

expenditure report 
 2021 CSBG April expenditure 

report 

• Morris presented 2020 CARES Fiscal Report.  
• Morris presented 2021 CSBG April report.  
• Both reports show spending is on target.  
• Kaushal asked about administration costs being at 108% and expressed concerns about not having 

enough money to cover the amount.  
• Morris assured that certain lines items can go up to 110% if another category can offset that amount.  
• Zeimer asked if CARES contract monies could cover the trips to the NCAP Annual Conference. Morris 

answered that CARES could not legally cover the trip and is trying to see if monies could come from 
somewhere else, but at this point it seems not to be possible.  

Debrief:  
 Community Action Month 

and Follow-up 
 BOS Proclamation 

Presentation 5/17 
 Roundtable Event 5/17 

• Zeimer debriefed the group about the events of Community Action Month Board of Supervisors 
Proclamation Presentation and Roundtable Event.  

• Staff member Amanda Cleveland showed off the framed proclamation.  
• McKee complimented staff on their quick pivot of turning the Roundtable Event from an in-person 

event to a virtual one.  
• Cleveland reminded the group about wanting to gather a summer reading list.  
• McKee said she could create a booklist on the library website once our list was compiled.  
• Kaushal thought the events went well. 
• Zeimer added that both special guest speakers had a good at the event.  

Action:  
 Review CSD Monitoring 

Report 
 Review and Approve 

Correction Action Plan Draft  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Kaur presented the monitoring report from the state’s review of the EOC’s work.  
• One major item noted was the number of vaccines on the EOC and the state wanted a stronger 

recruitment strategy.  
• The state said availability of minutes and timely turnarounds for the minutes were on point.  
• In the financial area, the state requires more timely processing of funds and expenditure reports.  
• Kaur clarified that the action for tonight would be approval and agreement that the states findings 

were within reason.  
• The state highlighted possible EPLS verifications with subcontractors.  
• Another issue was strengthening the gift card policy. Kaur and Morris detailed the controversy over gift 

cards and how the future use of them for subcontractors is up in the air.  
 
A motion to approve the Correction Action Plan Draft was made by Foley and seconded by Navarro. 
   
The motion passed with EOC members voting as follows:  
Ayes: Gudino, Nelson, Foley, McKee, Sewell, Zeimer, Peoples-Stokes, Kaushal, Navarro, Medlen. 
Nays: None  
Abstentions: None 
Absent: Merchant. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
                                          EOC Approved:  

 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

Discussion:  
 Strategic Planning Process 

and Consultant Lucy 
Hernandez involvement and 
support 

 Confirm planning session 
dates and times 

• Zeimer and Kaur presented the overview for the Strategic Planning session.  
• Dr. Lucy Hernandez will go over ROMA (Result Oriented Management and Accountability) with the 

group.  
• Zeimer told the group to mark their calendars for the June 29th meeting and to look out for an email 

with preparation documents.  

 NCAP Annual Conference  • Discussed item during the fiscal portion of the meeting. As of now there are no monies in place to pay 
for the trip, but staff is trying to find a way to at least send Kaushal to the conference in August.  

Reports:  
• CSB Director   
• EOC Chair   
• CSB Staff   
• EOC Members  
 

CSB Director 
• Dr. Aaron Alarcon-Bowen could not attend.  

 
EOC Chair 

• None. 

CSB Staff 

• Kaur reminded the group July meetings are cancelled and we will resume in August. 
• Staff is backlogged on demands requested due to inefficient documentation from the subcontractors.  

EOC Members 
 

• None. 
 Next Steps Next Steps 

• Morris will look into leftover allocated funds from the Roundtable Event. 
• Morris will also see if current contracts can cover costs for NCAP Conference.  
• Cleveland and Zeimer will work together to edit videos from the Roundtable and links to share to EOC 

and subcontractors.  
• Reich will send out links from DeSaulnier regarding mental health. 
• Staff will update EOC recruitment strategies.  
• Staff will email preparation documents for Strategic Planning session.  

 Evaluate the Meeting We did great. 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 
                                          EOC Approved:  

 

 

Economic Opportunity Council (EOC) Special Called Business Meeting Minutes 
Location:  Zoom Call 

 

 
Date:  6/29/22 Time Convened: 5:13 pm Time Terminated:  5:37 pm Recorder:  Christina Reich 
 
Conference Call attendees: Renee Zeimer, Devlyn Sewell, Desiré Medlen, Ajit Kaushal, Sofia Navarro, LaTonia Peoples-Stokes, Noe Gudino, 
Monisha Merchant 
 
Absentees: Brendan Foley, Allison McKee 
Staff: Amrita Kaur, Amanda Cleveland, Christina Reich 
Guest: Lucy Hernandez, Consultant 
 

Quorum: Yes 
 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

Review desired outcomes and ground 
rules. 

• Chair Zeimer called the meeting to order at 5:13 pm.   
• Kaushal read the desired outcomes.   

Public Comment • None present.  

Action:  
 Approve 2022 CSBG 

Discretionary Funding 
Expenditure Plan 

• Reich reported that CSB received $31,000 in CSBG discretionary funding from CSD.  
• Reich reported that due to gas prices increasing, the cost of food has risen and our community is 

experiencing food insecurity. Staff recommends directing discretionary funding to relieve the impact. 
Members discussed the need to ensure that food is distributed county-wide to the communities where 
our clients live, not at stationary locations where transportation is required.  

• Kaushal requested funding to send an EOC member to training and Zeimer concurred, reminding members 
and staff that this was agreed to when we zeroed out the out-of-state travel in our initial budget to ensure 
not cut in funding to the community-based organizations. 

 
A motion to approve allocating $26,000 to White Pony Express and $5,000 to Out-of-State Travel was made 
by Merchant and seconded by Peoples-Stokes. 
 
The motion passed with EOC members voting as follows:  
Ayes: Sewell, Peoples-Stokes, Kaushal, Navarro, Medlen, Merchant 



 

Page 2 of 2 
                                          EOC Approved:  

 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Nays: Zeimer  
Abstentions: Gudino 
Absent: Foley and McKee 

 Evaluate the Meeting Great job.  

 



 

 

Services Block Grant
 Monthly Expenditures
 2021 Contract # 21F-4007

 

 

 Term: Jan 1, 2021 through May 37, 2022
 As of May 2022
 

 Line sub Budget 53% 59% 65% 71% 76% 82% 88% 94% 100% YTD YTD
 Item Description object Sept 2021 Oct 2021 Nov 2021 Dec 2021 Jan 2022 Feb 2022 Mar 2022 Apr 2022 May 2022 Total Balance % ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS:

 

  1 |Salaries and Wages 1011 19,561 3,783 795 747 793 703 2,716 2,257 3,827 19,604 (43) 100%
 
 2 |Fringe Benefits 14,279 587 478 461 354 314 1,696 1,467 5,869 11,775 2,504 82% 
 3 {Other Costs-Indirect Costs 70,500 47,844 22,656 70,500 100% 
 Total Administrative Costs 104,340 4,370 1,273 1,207 1,147 1,016 4,412 51,568 32,353 101,879 2,461 98%
 

 PROGRAM COSTS:
  Salaries and Wages 1011 233,217 19,383 16,751 17,043 8,100 5,733 10,217 8,156 7,089 16,561 225,844 7,373 97%
 

 Fringe Benefits 108,134 10,505 9,401 9,437 827 1,195 6,248 3,476 118,547 (10,413) 110%
 

 Operating Expenses 28,058 170 143 541 596 86 12,974 15,084 46%
 

 Out-of-State Travel
0% 
 Subcontractor Services 409,049 27,339 14,073 32,820 18,133 37,761 18,319 30,382 16,301 157,504 410,102 (1,053) 100%
 Opportunity Junction, Inc 35,000 2,494 4,989 4,989 2,494 35,000 (0) 100% Monument Impact 30,333 2,533 11,128 29,227 1,106 96% The Contra Costa Clubhouse Inc 34,002 6,930 31,103 2,899 91%
 CCInterfaith (Hope Solutions) 27,000 5,604 1,864 7,917 2,778 27,000 0 100%
 White Pony Express 7,664 11,678 23,007 (7) 100% Shelter Inc of Contra Costa 2,923 35,077 0 100% CC Health Services Homeless Program 11,000 5,500 33,000 100%
 Loaves and Fishes of Contra Costa 11,169 2,792 2,792 2,792 2,792 33,507 100% 

ere
TNE

[OOD
ESET

PW
be

[
O
O
O

pst
LO
P
O
M

[oo
[op Monument Crisis Center 10,500 8,282 2,100 30,320 (320) 101%
 10 |St. Vincent de Paul of Contra Costa County 4,362 6,542 902 37,265 (2,265) 106% 11. _|Lao Family Community Development 6,163 2,615 1,339 26,553 (1,553) 106% 12 _|Bay Area Community Resources 3,876 770 124 22,181 (51) 100%
 13 [Rising Sun Center For Opportunity 3,820 6,503 1,300 1,892 2,202 2,311 21,861 (861) 104% 14 |Great Richmond Interfaith Program 1,709 25,000 (0) 100% 
 Total Program Costs 778,458 57,397 40,368 59,842 27,061 45,285 34,785 42,015 23,476 174,065 767,466 10,992 99% 
   Total Expenditures   882,798  61,767  41,640  61,049  27,061  46,432  35,801  46,427  75,044  206,418  869,345  13,453  98%
 

 

 



 

Community Services Block Grant
 

Monthly Expenditures
 

2021 Contract # 21F-4408

 

 

 

As of May 2022
 

 

 Line sub Total 71% 5th Qtr 86% 100% YTD YTD
 Item Description object Budget Mar 2022 Total Apr 2022 May 2022 Total Balance %
 

 PROGRAM COSTS:
  1 |Salaries and Wages 1,170 1,170.00 1,170.00 100%
 

 2 |Fringe Benefits 854 854.00 854.00 100%
 

 

 

4 |Out-of-State Travel 0%
 

 

Subcontractor Services
 

Opportunity Junction, Inc 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 

Monument Impact 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 0%
 

The Contra Costa Clubhouse Inc 2310 1,873.29 1,873.65 1,873.65 (0.36) 100%
 

CC Interfaith (Hope Solutions) 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 

White Pony Express 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 

Shelter Inc of Contra Costa 2310 1,873.29 1,757.07 1,757.07 116.22 94%
 

CC Health Services Homeless Program 2310 1,873.29 1,873.32 1,873.32 1,873.32 (0.03) 100%
 

Loaves and Fishes of Contra Costa 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 

T
e

T
A
T
O
O

P
t

[LO
C
O
T
M

[OO
1
G MonumentCrisis Center 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 10 |St. Vincent de Paul of Contra Costa County 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 11 j|Lao Family Community Development 2310 1,873.29 270.50 270.50 501.07 676.91 1,448.48 77%
 12 |Bay Area Community Resources 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 

13 {Rising Sun Center For Opportunity 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 14 {Great Richmond Interfaith Program 2310 1,873.29 1,873.29 1,873.29 100%
 

  Total   28,250.00  5,890.40  5,890.40  7,994.23  11,951.50  25,836.13  2,413.93  91%
 

 

 



 
Community Services Block Grant
 Monthly Expenditures
 2020 CARES Contract # 20F-3646
 Term: MAR 27, 2020 - AUG 31, 2022
 June and July of 2022
 

 
sub CAA CARES JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL YTD YTD

  Description object Budget 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 Total Balance %
 ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS:
  

 

Salaries and Wages 1011 30,877 793 702.50 798.09 437.05 2,049.46 4,312.77 34,031 (3,154) 110%
 

 Fringe Benefits 22,539.00 449 313.81 427.03 269.88 1,431.74 2,834.75 18,831 3,708 84%
 

 Total Administrative Costs 53,416 1,242 1,016 1,225.11 706.93 3,481.20 7,147.52 52,862 554
 

99%

 PROGRAM COSTS:
  

_

Salaries and Wages 1011 54,733.00 7,708 3,256.33 59,312 (4,579) 108%
 

 Fringe Benefits 39,954 5,459 7,373.90 43,334 (3,380) 108%
 
 Operating Expenses 44,089 2,336 4,419.00 462.20 12,961 31,128 29%
 
 Subcontractor Services 2310 996,989 21,499 3,519.00 84,964.07 118,656.08 75,255.12 23,352.80 139,075.92 818,452 178,537 82%
 

N
P
S
)
,

i
t
i
n
r
N
O
T

O
H
O
M

©
S
o

N
O

Bay Area Community Resources 78,869 2,520 888.00 6,300.00 38,065 40,804 48%
 Bay Area Legal Aid 99,999 7,224 15,120.00 23,218.00 94,129 5,870 94%
 Contra Costa County Health Services Dept. 66,999 55,058.54 11,928.83 66,987 12 100%
 Contra Costa Interfaith Housing 74,000 999 74,999 (999) 101%
 Greater RichmondInterfaith Program 74,000 16,566.34 6,848.66 17,557.94 40,973 33,027 55%
 Lao Family Community Development
 

Loaves and Fishes of Contra Costa
 

MonumentCrisis Center
 

Monument Impact
 

Opportunity Junction, Inc
 

Shelter Inc of Contra Costa
 

St Vincent de Paul of Contra Costa County

74,000

66,492

69,999

78,869

60,922

60,922

64,999

9,027.00 81,648 (7,648) 110%
 

5,119.13 5,816.56 24,829.98 12,173.00 66,492 0 100%
 

9,380.00 9,335.62 34,996 35,003 50%
 

5,983.72 78,869 (0) 100%
 

33,077.10 16,950.00 53,897 7,025 88%
 

52,723.69 58,569 2,353 96%
 

33,219.21 902.14 31,779.19 65,901 (902) 101%
 STAND! For Families Free of Violence 60,922 14,275 2,928.04 9,369.14 6,575.00 9,206.48 50,605 10,317 83%
 The Conta Costa Clubhouses,Inc. 65,997 9,422.68 12,323 53,674 19%
 

 Total Program Costs 1,135,765 37,002 7,938 85,426.27 129,286.31 75,255.12 23,352.80 139,075.92 934,058 201,707 82%
 

 Total Expenditures 1,189,181 38,244 8,954 86,651.38 129,993.24 75,255.12 26,834.00 146,223.44 986,920 202,261 83%
 
      
 

         



 

Community Services Block Grant
 

Monthly Expenditures
 

2020 Contract # 20F-3646 DISC

 

 

 

June and July 2022
 

 

 

Line sub Total Apr-Jun YTD YTD
 

Item Description object Budget Apr 2022 May 2022 Jun 2022 Total Jun-22 Jul 2022 Total Balance %
 

 

Subcontractor Services
 

Opportunity Junction, Inc 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 100%
 

Monument Impact 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 0%
 

The Contra Costa Clubhouse Inc 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 100%
 

CC Interfaith (Hope Solutions) 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 100%
 

White Pony Express 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 100%
 

Shelter Inc of Contra Costa 2310 2,883.57 1,632.22 1,632.22 1,632.22 1,251.35 57%
 

CC Health Services Homeless Program 2310 2,883.57 2,884.00 (0.43) 100%
 

T
e

ENE
L
O
O
P
S

LLP
COP

M
m

o
O Loaves and Fishes of Contra Costa 2310 2,883.57 1,238.47 1,238.47 2,883.57 100%
 om MonumentCrisis Center 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 100%
 ©=

St. Vincent de Paul of Contra Costa County 2310 2,883.57 688.12 688.12 2,198.39 685.18 76%
 ——

Lao Family Community Development 2310 2,883.57 2,779.61 2,779.61 2,/79.61 103.96 96%
 N-

Bay Area Community Resources 2310 2,883.57 2,883.57 2,883.57 100%
 %—

Rising Sun Center For Opportunity 2310 2,883.57 2,227.88 2,227.88 2,883.57 100%
 +=

Great RichmondInterfaith Program 2310 2,883.57 1,478.28 1,478.28 143.78 1,622.06 1,261.51 56%
 

  Total   40,369.98  2,779.61

|

15,915.68   18,695.29   8,794.49  34,184.84  6,185.14  85%
 

 

 



Economic Opportunity Council (EOC) Report

Weatherization and ECIP Programs

Year-to-Date Expenditures and Clients Served

Period: Oct 1, 2021 - Dec 31, 2021

 

Administration/Assurance 16/ECIP/HEAP

Weatherization (WX)

Utility Assistance (UA)

Total 2020 LIHEAP Contract

October 01, 2019 - December 31, 2021

CARES- Administration/Assurance 16/ECIP/HEAP July 01, 2020 - December31, 2021

CARES- Utility Assistance (UA)

Total 2020 LIHEAP CARES ACTContract

Administration/Assurance 16/ECIP/HEAP

Weatherization (WX)

Utility Assistance (UA)

Total 2021 LIHEAP Contract

November01, 2020 - June 30, 2022

Homes Weatherized Total for Period 51
 

East 25

Central 15

West 11

LIHEAP Clients Assisted (Utility Assistance for Period) 898

1,132,577

1,280,226

2,466,877

4,879,680

387,634

727,903

1,115,537

1,028,290

1,162,508

1,690,590

3,881,388

 

986,411

1,280,097

2,469,656

4,736,164

312,924

727,903

1,040,827

388,694

529,846

1,586,810

2,505,350

 



Economic Opportunity Council (EOC) Report

Weatherization and ECIP Programs

Year-to-Date Expenditures and Clients Served

Period: Jan 1, 2022 - Mar 31, 2022

 

Administration/Assurance 16/ECIP/HEAP

Weatherization (WX)

Utility Assistance (UA)

November01, 2020 - June 30,
2022 1,028,290

1,162,508

2,241,528

491,271

1,098,107

2,241,283
 

Total 2021 LIHEAP Contract

Administration/Assurance 16/ECIP/HEAP

Utility Assistance (UA)

August 01, 2021 - March 31,

2023

4,432,326

1,247,985

3,444,326

3,830,661

160,218

423,341
 

Total 2021 ARPA LIHEAP Contract

Administration/Assurance 16/ECIP/HEAP

Weatherization (WX)

Utility Assistance (UA)

Total 2022 LIHEAP Contract

Homes Weatherized Total for Period

East

Central

West

LIHEAP Clients Assisted (Utility Assistance for Period)

 

November01, 2021 - June 30,

2023

62
 

24

17

21

1520

4,692,311

786,244

889,005

1,713,969

3,389,218

583,559

2,375

125,023

15,436

142,834

 



 
Policy Proposal: CSBG RFI on 2-Year Cycle 

for Presentation to the EOC on August 16, 2022 
 

Background:  

Historically, the Economic Opportunity Council has opted to issue an RFI every year, providing an opportunity for new 
community-based organizations to be funded each year.  

In April 2022, during the CSBG Monitoring Review, funding allocations and spending levels were discussed and field 
representatives from the Department of Community Services and Development questioned why our contracts are year-
to-year, stating that they would be much more manageable if they were two-year contracts, aligned with the two-year 
Community Action Plan. They stated that this gives the subcontractor the ability to dive deep into the project and utilize 
the funds more easily.  

In May 2022, the Employment and Human Services Contracts Manager, requested that the CSBG contract go to a two-
year cycle as the administrative burden of issuing an RFI each year and executing an average of 13 contracts annually 
was excessive. The sheer number of contracts they have each year is rising and they strongly recommended we go to a 
two-year timeline. The average time for a contract to be executed is six months and due to the way the CSBG funding is 
issued, we are in a crunch each year. Going to a two-year award period reduces this administrative burden, elongates 
the time period the subcontractor has to implement and spend, and is ultimately much better for the consumer who 
does not have full year program fit into and abbreviated timeframe.  

In June of 2022, the CSB Contractor and CSBG Specialist, Lucy Hernandez, confirmed that what the state and the 
contract unit was recommending was best practice and in the best interest of subcontractors and consumers, while 
reducing administrative burden.   

Authority: 

CSBG Information Memorandum #82 Tripartite Boards states that “public entities administer their CSBG program 
through tri-partite boards that fully participate in the development, planning, implementation, and evaluation of the 
program serving low-income communities.” It is in this spirit that the CSB staff come to you with a recommendation that 
you approve a new policy to implement a two-year grant cycle for CSBG subcontractors.  

New Protocol:  

The Contra Costa County Community Action Program housed in the Employment and Human Services Department 
Community Services Bureau, will begin issuing RFI’s for two-year grant periods to coincide with the two-year Community 
Action Plan, beginning with the 2024-25 grant year. For the 2023-24 grant year, the county will provide contract 
amendments to increase the term of those contracts from 12 months to 24 months.  

Timeline:  

1. August 2022:  Begin communicating with current subcontractors obtain contract information. 
2. September 2022:  Submit contract amendments to EHSD Contracts and Grants.  
3. March 2023:  2023-24 contract amendments fully executed and ready for implementation.  
4. July 2023:  Issue RFI for two-year grant cycle using Community Action Plan Priorities. 
5. August 2023:  EOC determines awardees of CSBG funds. 
6. September 2023: Submit contracts requests to EHSD Contracts and Grants. 
7. March 2024:  2023-25 contract amendments fully executed and ready for implementation. 
8. For subsequent years: Follow steps 4 through 7 every two years.   



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM  
STRATEGIC PLAN 2022-2027 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

1. AGENCY LEVEL GOAL 

Rooted in economic and environmental equity, build capacity for and deeper connections and 
knowledge sharing amongst Economic Opportunity Council members, subcontractors, and community, 
promoting leadership development and intersectional collaboration. 

 Strategies: 

• Engage staff, Economic Opportunity Council and subcontractors in exploring and learning 
about intersectionality to better understand it together and fully integrate it into our service 
delivery models so that our services are grounded in equity, respect, and justice. 

• Transition to a two-year grant cycle for CSBG subcontractors to allow for deeper work and 
relationship-building resulting in greater outcomes.  

• Align the work of the Contra Costa County Community Action Agency with an increased 
number of community partners to aid in furthering the work outlined in the Community 
Action Plan.  

• Fully utilize the Community Action Virtual Onboarding (CAVO) eCourse system to train staff 
and board members, with an emphasis on leadership development for low-income sector 
representatives.  

• Increase efficiency and transparency by sharing the Employment and Human Services 
Department’s written policies and procedures as they relate to the work of the Community 
Action Agency so that we can hold ourselves and others accountable.  

Alignment with National Community Action Goal: Communities were people with low incomes live are 
healthy and offer economic opportunity.  

2. COMMUNITY LEVEL GOAL 

Create living wage jobs through our subcontractors and the CSBG internship program, sharing best 
practices and increasing connections between them to have a bigger impact.  

 Strategies: 

• Elevate best practices, promote sharing of best practices, invite speakers, and increase 
connections with the subcontractors and student interns at the Roundtable Events hosted 
by the EOC. 

• Create an alumni program comprised of Student Intern graduates and leverage their 
experiences to empower and encourage current student interns.  

• Integrate the work of Contra Costa County and the City of Richmond Workforce 
Development programs with that of the Contra Costa County Community Action Program in 
an effort to create more living wage jobs.  

• Educate ourselves about successful job training programs and share learnings so that we can 
share them for replication in the community. 

• Invite labor, library, and other entities that offer volunteer or paid internship and 
apprenticeship positions that involve skill building and lead to attainment of entry level jobs 
leading to living wages.  



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM  
STRATEGIC PLAN 2022-2027 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

Alignment with National Community Action Goal: People with low incomes are engaged and active in 
building opportunities in communities.   

3. INDIVIDUAL/FAMILY LEVEL GOAL 

Acknowledge gaps, meet people where they are, and advocate for compassionate solutions to provide 
the basic needs for the most vulnerable individuals and families in Contra Costa County. 

 Strategies:  

• Increase advocacy efforts by engaging the EOC and community partners in opportunities to 
contact legislators on a regular basis regarding policy issues that impact the work of 
Community Action and the low-income community.  

• Identify gaps by conducting listening sessions with the low-income community and 
community partners and actively seek solutions to ensure the well-being of individuals and 
families.  

• Increase knowledge of and gain a better understanding of systems changes and use this 
knowledge to help individuals and families navigate these changes through educational 
campaigns and appropriate methods of communication.  

• Strive for equity and respect for our low-income individuals and families and be active in 
economic and social justice efforts.  

• Keep abreast of funding coming in to the county and advocate for its use to address the 
gaps identified.  

Alignment with National Community Action Goal: Individuals and families with low incomes are stable 
and achieve economic security.   

 



 

Contra Costa County 

Employment & Human Services Department 

Community Services Bureau 

 

 

EOC Committee  Content Revised: 8/2022 A.Kaur 

2022 Economic Opportunity Council Subcommittees 
 
 

Executive Subcommittee:  1st Thursday of every month-12:00 pm – 1:00 pm (unless stated otherwise)  
1. Renee Zeimer- Chair 
2. Devlyn Sewell - Vice Chair 
3. Desire Medlen- Secretary 

 
Fiscal Subcommittee: 1st Thursday of every month-11:00 am – 12:00 pm (unless stated otherwise) 

1. Ajit Kaushal- Chair 
2. Renee Zeimer 
3. Noe Gudino 
4. Devlyn Sewell- Alternate 
5. VACANT – was Mandy Nelson 

 
Program Services: Set meeting date and time: TBD 

1. Devlyn Sewell – Chair 
2. Renee Zeimer 
3. Brendan Foley 
4. LaTonia Peoples-Stokes  
5. Monisha Merchant 

 
Outreach Subcommittee: Set meeting date and time: TBD 

1. Monisha Merchant-Chair 
2. Noe Gudino 
3. VACANT – was Samuel Houston 

 
Governance Subcommittee: Set meeting date and time: TBD 

1. Desire Medlen--Chair 
2. Ajit Kaushal 
3. Renee Zeimer 
4. Devlyn Sewell  
5. VACANT – was Cloudell Douglas 

 
Pending to place on a sub-committee 

1. Sophia Navarro 
2. Alison McKee 

 
Business Meeting: set 2nd Thursday of every month 6:00pm-7:30pm (unless stated otherwise) 

1. Renee Zeimer - Chair 
2. Devlyn Sewell  
3. Desire Medlen  
4. Ajit Kaushal 



 

Contra Costa County 

Employment & Human Services Department 

Community Services Bureau 

 

 

EOC Committee  Content Revised: 8/2022 A.Kaur 

5. Renee Zeimer 
6. Noe Gudino 
7. Brendan Foley 
8. LaTonia Peoples-Stokes  
9. Monisha Merchant 
10. Sophia Navarro 
11. Alison McKee 
12. VACANT (Low-income seat #1) 
13. VACANT (Low-income seat #4) 
14. VACANT (Low-income seat #5) 
15. VACANT (Public sector seat #1, Supervisor Gioia District) 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 1 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 

I. Name ................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

II. Authority ........................................................................................................................................................... 2 

III. Officers .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 

IV. Scope of Responsibilities .................................................................................................................................. 3 

V. Membership ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 

VI. Standards of Conduct........................................................................................................................................ 5 

VII. Terminations .................................................................................................................................................... 5 

VIII. Membership Vacancies .................................................................................................................................... 6 

IX. Reimbursement… ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

X. Administration and Staff ....................................................................................................................................6 

XI. Rules................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

XII. Meeting and Meeting Notices ............................................................................................................................ 6 

XIII. Amendments .................................................................................................................................................. 7-8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Working by-laws edits from 2/8/2022 
& 3/7/2022 Governance Subcommittee. 
 
EOC Board approved 3.10.2022 
Staff added new language 4.8.2022  
EOC Approved 4.14.2022 w/ new language 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 2 

 

 

 

I. Name 
The Contra Costa County Economic Opportunity Council (EOC) is the tripartite board of the Community  

Action Agency (CAA) responsible for administering the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG). The 

Employment and Human Services Department’s (EHSD) Community Services Bureau (CSB) is the Federal 

and State recognized public entity for the Community Action Agency (CAA) of Contra Costa County. 

 

II. Authority 

 
The Economic Opportunity Council of Contra Costa County was created under the Economic Opportunity  

Act of 1964, as amended, and the Community Services Administration Act of 1974, as amended, the 

Community Services Block Grant Act of 1981, as amended and the Coats Human Services Reauthorization 

Act of 1998, as amended. Federal CSBG Act 42 U.S.C. § 9910 states the entity shall administer the 

community services block grant program through a tripartite board able to participate actively in the 

development, planning, implementation, and evaluation of the CSBG program. Contra Costa County Board 

Resolution 3671 pursuant to the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 created the legal authority for this 

body. 

 

III. Officers 
The officers of the EOC shall be the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary. Officers shall be elected 
annually at the September meeting. 

A. Chairperson 

The Chairperson shall preside at all EOC meetings. He or she has the authority to call special 
meetings and make appointments to standing and ad-hoc committees. The Chairperson shall 
enforce the observance of order and decorum among the members. Meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 

B. Vice-Chairperson 

The Vice-Chairperson shall assist the Chairperson and assume all the obligations and authority if 
the Chairperson is absent. 

C. Secretary 

The Secretary shall declare whether a quorum exists at the beginning of each meeting. The 
Secretary shall monitor attendance. He or she shall read any correspondence at EOC meetings. He 
or she shall check for any corrections or clarification on previous month’s minutes, and seek  
approval of minutes. The Secretary shall also help prepare minutes of the meeting and ensure that 
the meeting is recorded. Staff assistance shall be provided. 

D. Election of Officers 

The officers shall be elected annually at the September EOC meeting. Nominations for the officers 
shall be made by the general membership. Should any elective office become vacant, the 
Chairperson shall appoint a member to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term and 
the EOC shall approve the appointment. 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 3 

 

 

 

E. Roles and Responsibility of the Executive Committee 

Executive officers shall attend all EOC and Executive Committee meetings. They shall plan the 
general meetings, review the previous month’s minutes and set the agenda. The Executive 
Committee may conduct emergency meetings if the majority of the members cannot meet. A 
quorum of 51% of current Executive Committee members, excluding vacancies, will be required to 
make a program recommendation on behalf of the general membership. In this case, all Executive 
Committee decisions must be ratified by the full body of the EOC at the next scheduled meeting. 

 

IV. Scope of Responsibilities 
As set forth in the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964, as amended, the Community Services Block Grant Act 
of 1981 and the Coats Human Services Reauthorization Act of 1998, as amended, and by the actions of the 
Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors, the responsibilities of the EOC are: 

A.  To make recommendations to Board of Supervisors (BOS) for EOC membership. 
B.  To hold public hearings for the Community Action Plan of CSB. 
C.  To participate in the subcontractor funding process as directed by program guidance. 
D. To conduct at least one (1) site monitoring visit to a subcontractor. 
E.  To submit an Annual Report to the BOS on EOC activities accomplishments, membership 

attendance, required training/certification, proposed work plan or objectives. 
F.  To review fiscal and programmatic reports submitted by staff regarding the performance of CSBG 

subcontractors and the Weatherization programs. 
G.  To receive and review each month the budget, minutes, and other reports or materials prepared by 

staff. 

 

V. Membership 

A. The EOC shall consist of fifteen (15) members, divided equally among three 

sections, as follows: 

1. Public Sector 

The EOC Public Sector shall include five members of the Contra Costa County Board of  
Supervisors. Each Supervisor may appoint a delegate to serve and vote in his or her place. 
Delegate appointments must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

2. Low-Income Sector 

a) The EOC Low Income Sector shall include five members who represent the low 
income population. 

b) To be eligible for appointment, a person must reside in a Contra Costa County low 
income community or represent low income residents. 

c) All persons seeking appointment must submit an application to the Clerk of the 
Board. 

d) The EOC may recommend for appointment up to two alternate Low Income Sector 
members, who shall serve and vote in place of Low Income Sector members who are absent 
from, or who are disqualifying themselves from participating in a meeting of the EOC. 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 4 

 

 

 

e) Alternates must meet the same requirements as a regular Low Income Sector 
member. 

f) All appointments must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

g) Low-income representatives and alternates may be reimbursed for reasonable 

expenses (see Reimbursement Section 9). 

h) Procedure for selecting Representatives of Low Income Persons. Representatives of 

low income persons shall be chosen in accordance with democratic selection procedures 

adequate to assure that they represent the low income persons in the geographic service 

area. Representatives of low income persons may be selected either to represent a specific 

area, group, or neighborhood within the service area. Among the selection procedures 

which may be employed, either separately or in combination, are the following” (a) 

nominations and elections, whether within the neighborhoods, community or service area 

as a whole; (b) selection at a meeting or conference of low income persons such that the 

date, time, and place of such a meeting or conference have been adequately publicized; (c) 

selection of a small area basis (such as a neighborhood or town) of representatives who in 

turn select members for the Board; (d) the Board may recognize a group(s) or 

organizations(s) composed primarily of low income persons and representing the interest 

of the low income population, whose membership may select one or more representatives 

of the Board. Persons at or below 125% of the poverty line shall be permitted to vote in the 

selection processes. The Board may request a waiver for this 125% poverty line eligibility 

in order to establish residency or criteria as a basis for eligibility. The Board shall make the 

request for a waiver in writing to the Director of the Office of Community Services. Only 

those persons sixteen (16) years or older shall be eligible to vote. Each person voting shall 

be permitted to only one (1) vote. 
 

3. Private/Non-Profit Sector 

a) The EOC Private/Non-Profit Sector shall include five members who represent the 
private sector, non-profit organizations, and public services agencies within Contra Costa 
County. 

b) All persons seeking appointment must submit an application to the Clerk of the 
Board. 

c) The EOC may recommend for appointment up to two alternate Private/Non-Profit 
Sector members, who shall serve and vote in place of Private/Non-Profit Sector members 
who are absent from, or who are disqualifying themselves from participating in a meeting of 
the EOC. 

d) Alternates must meet the same requirements as a regular Private/Non-Profit Sector 
member. 

e) All appointments must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

B. Seat Terms 

1. The term of office for Low-Income and Private/Non-Profit Sector members of the EOC shall 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 5 

 

 

be for two (2) years. Low-Income or Private/Non-Profit Sector members may serve no more than 
three (3) consecutive full terms. Low Income Sector and Private/Non-Profit Sector members may 
seek reappointment by submitting applications for review to the Clerk of the Board within a 
minimum of sixty (60) days prior to the end of their term. Members who fail to submit a completed 
application within the specified time period must reapply as a new applicant. 

2. Public Sector members shall serve terms that are equal in duration to their term as a 
member of the Board of Supervisors or until withdrawn from delegation by the supervisor. 
Delegates serve four (4) year terms for the duration of the Board member term of office or until 
withdrawn by the supervisor. 

3. Unscheduled Vacancies: Terms of the EOC shall begin on July 1st and end on June 30th. 
Should any seat become vacant during its term, the person appointed to fill that position shall serve 
for the unexpired portion of that term. 

 
 
 

VI. Standards of Conduct 

 
A. Standards 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 6 

 

 

 

1. All members, alternates and designated staff shall prioritize service to the poor over service to 

oneself. 

2. EOC members are held to the same policies and procedures stated in the county’s code of conduct at 

the following website :https://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-

/ethics-training.html 

B. Conflict of Interest 

1. All members, alternates and designated staff shall disclose potential conflicts of interest by filing 

an annual Statement of Economic Interest (FORM 700) and all other necessary and required 

documents. 

2. Where there is actual or potential conflict of interest, members will recuse themselves from 

the discussion and/or action taken. 

 

VII. Terminations 
An EOC member may be terminated from the body by a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors for 

removal. 

A. Attendance 

1. The EOC schedules a minimum of 10 business meetings annually. A quorum is necessary 

to conduct the business of the board. Two absences from the regularly scheduled EOC business 

meetings in a rolling 12-month period will warrant inquiry from the Executive Committee. Three 

absences from thee regularly scheduled business meetings within a 12-month period will result in a 

recommendation to  the Board of Supervisors for removal from the EOC. 

B. Misconduct 

1. Any members who have been called out of order by the chair more than once will be 
removed from the meeting for misconduct. 

2. Due process in accordance with county guidelines will be followed. Refer to “Understanding Ethics 

& Conflict of Interest Codes https://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-

/ethics-training.html 

3. For reasons of misconduct, a member will be recommended to the Board of Supervisors 
for     removal by majority vote of EOC members currently serving. 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 7 

 

 

 

VIII. Membership Vacancies 

A. Scheduled Vacancy 

A scheduled vacancy occurs when a member’s term expires. A scheduled vacancy can be filled after an 

open recruitment process and upon approval by the Board of Supervisors. 

B. Unscheduled Vacancy 
An unscheduled vacancy occurs when a member leaves prior to the end of their seated term. Staff will notify 

the Board of Supervisors of any unscheduled vacancies. The Clerk of the Board will post the vacancy for a 

minimum of ten business days. All persons seeking appointment must follow application protocols. 

IX. Reimbursement 

A. The Economic Opportunity Council is responsible for providing, if necessary, reimbursements for 
reasonable expenses incurred by the low income sector representatives and alternates (i.e. transportation). 

B.  Low Income representatives and alternates will be reimbursed for mileage according to standard rates 

when attending approved activities related to the Economic Opportunity Council. 

 
1. Rates 

 
All reimbursement rates are based on Administrative Bulletin #111.8 (dated 7-13-2010) and are 

subject to change. 

 
2. Procedures for Requesting Reimbursement 

 
Reimbursement request must be made using Demand form D-15 with original receipts 

attached.  Reimbursement is made on a monthly basis. 

 

X. Administration and Staff 
CSB staff will provide technical and administrative program management and support to the EOC. Staff will 
ensure compliance with all local, state and federal requirements. 

 

XI. Rules 
The EOC may adopt such rules and procedures as are necessary to conduct its business. The EOC shall be 
governed in its activities by all applicable laws, regulations and instructions. 

XII. Meeting and Meeting Notices 

Meeting notices shall comply with the Brown Act, Contra Costa County’s Better Government Ordinance, and 
all applicable local and state meetings laws.  

A. General Meetings 

General meetings of the EOC shall be held monthly at a time and location(s) convenient for the



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 8 

 

 

members and the general public.  

Each September, the EOC will set its general meeting schedule for the year.  

1. The Chair, in consultation with the Executive Committee, may cancel a meeting if there is no 
business to warrant a meeting. 

 

 

2. Virtual and hybrid meetings may take place in accordance with State and local public meeting 
laws. 

B. Special Meetings 

A special meeting may be called at any time by the Chairperson or by a majority of the members of 
the EOC in accordance with the Brown Act (public meeting law) and Contra Costa County’s Better 
Governance Ordinance. 

C. Quorum 

A quorum is 51% of the fifteen authorized seats. 
 

D. Voting 

1. Voting on resolutions and all other matters shall be by roll call vote of members in 

attendance. When the vote is held, the ayes, nays, and abstentions shall be entered into the 

minutes. Proxy voting is not permitted. 

2. Alternates shall be designated as Alternate number 1 and Alternate number 2 for purposes 

of voting. 

E. Agenda 
The agenda shall comply with the Brown Act and Contra Costa County’s Better Government 
Ordinance and all applicable laws. 

F. Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary. 

G. Use of Social Media 
Board members may use social media to provide information and communicate their positions to 
constituents and the public. Other board members are prohibited from replying or reacting (ex. with 
emojis or like/dislike icons) to such posts regarding agency business as this constitutes a serial 
meeting, a violation of the Brown Act.  

 

 

 

 

 

XIII. Amendments 



The Economic Opportunity Council 
of 

Contra Costa County 
ByLaws 

EOC Approved: April 12, 2018 
BOS Approved: September 11, 2018 9 

 

 

A. Amendments of ByLaws 

These bylaws may be amended by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the current membership of the EOC. All 
amendments must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

B. Notice of Amendment 

Notice of proposed bylaws amendments must be presented in writing to the EOC and agenized at a 
general meeting. The proposed amendments may be voted upon at the next general meeting of the 
EOC. The agenda for the meeting at which the proposed amendment is to be voted upon shall 
contain an item entitled “Proposed ByLaws Amendment.” 

C. Public Access to EOC Records 
The EOC shall make available to the public all records as required by the Brown Act, Contra Costa 
County’s Better Government Ordinance, the Public Records Act, and other applicable laws. 

D. Dissolution 
Dissolution of the EOC shall be affected in accordance with applicable law. 


	1. Setember 8, 2022 EOC Business Meeting Agenda FINAL
	Economic Opportunity Council Business Meeting
	9/8/2022 


	2. EOC Board Member App P. Campbell REDACTED 8-19-2022
	3. EOC Business Meeting Minutes June 9 2022 Corrected - DRAFT
	4. EOC Special Called Business Meeting June 29 2022 Corrected -DRAFT
	5. June July 2022 Fiscal CSBG
	6. EOC LIHEAP WX Quarter Ended 12 31 21
	7. EOC LIHEAP WX Quarter Ended 3 31 22
	8. Policy Proposal for 2 year RFI 8-4-2022 DRAFT
	9. Strategic Plan - Goals and Strategies 8-5-2022 draft
	10. 2022 EOC Sub-committees Revised 8-2022
	11. EOC Bylaws BOS Approved June 21 2022

